Economic Development Corporation – 4B Meeting Minutes May 22, 2019

Meeting of the Board Economic Development met in the Bronte City Hall Council Room, 114 S. Washington, Bronte, Tx.

Meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. Board members present –Susan Williams, Brenda Hines, Marlene Vaughn, Katie Cooper-Ramirez, Linda Scott and Gwen Dyess. Andra Arrott, clerk, was absent.

Pledge of Allegiance led by Susan Williams, President

Prayer by Susan.

No public comment

Approval of Minutes - Apr 16, 2019

Motion by Brenda to approve minutes with correction of Reese and Andra being absent. Seconded by Katie. Ayes – 5. Linda abstained.

Financial Report/AP - Discussed financials and AP. Motion by Reese to approve. Seconded by Brenda. Ayes - 5. Linda abstained.

OLD BUSINESS

Update/Status of choosing designer for website update

Katie Cooper-Ramirez d.b.a. KCR, did presentation of website she would be designing for Bronte with proposed costs. She will design for \$1,000.00 initial cost and charge \$200.00 monthly maintenance fee. She uses WIK as host, which costs \$22.00 per month. Discussion and questions answered. Neputism has been checked on with TML because of Katie's father being on the city council and aunt being the clerk for EDC. Since KCR has already been contracted as a vendor with EDC, TML says it is okay to hire her. Katie left so the board could discuss. Agreed to pay \$1,000.00 initial fee, \$200.00 per month to maintain, and request KCR pay the \$22.00 monthly fee to WIK. Katie rejoined the board and is agreeable to these terms. A contract will be drawn up and approved. Katie left the meeting at 6:05 p.m.

Discuss/Act - Status of Mural deposit to Presley Rumsey

Presley Rumsey is ready to begin the mural on the side of Glenn-Bivins. Will table further action at this time, as she begins the project.

Discuss/Act - Update on Billboards

Discussion regarding billboards and Teresa will get and official quote for replacing 3 of the existing signs. Motion by Reese and seconded by Gwen. Ayes – 4, Linda abstained.

Discuss/Act - Update on status of poles for installation of promotional banners

Discussion regarding the need to get hardware for hanging. Teresa will call Jason at Cortez to find out where to get the hardware to secure the mechanism to the poles.

Review - Results of recent "Celebrity Turkey & Hog Hunt"

Susan reviewed the results of the Celebrity Turkey & Hog Hunt. Good results and money made for the first year and feedback has been positive for continuing this event.

NEW BUSINESS

Discuss/Act - Approval of Lynn Follis Resignation by City Council

Reese made a motion that resignation of Lynn Follis be approved. Seconded by Marlene. 4 Ayes. Linda abstain.

Discuss/Act – Approval of Linda Scott by City Council

Reese made the motion to approve the appointment of Linda Scott to EDC 4B by City Council. Second – Gwen. Ayes – 4. Linda abstained.

EDC 4B Meeting May 22, 2019 Page Two

Discuss/Act - Approval of amended by-laws by City Council

Teresa reviewed the amended by-laws made by the city council, which is Article Two, 2.01(b), changing the board of director term from 2 year to 4 year term. Motion was made by Reese and seconded by Linda. Ayes-All.

Discuss/Act – Approve Eckert CPA Invoice for financial audit – Discussed financial audit statement for \$750.00 for Eckert CPA for the year ending September 30, 2018. Motion to approve by Reese. Seconded by Brenda. Ayes – all.

Discuss

Open Discussion

Adjourned at 6:56 p.m.

BRENDA HINES, SECRETARY

BYLAWS OF BRONTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (4B)

ARTICLE ONE: PURPOSE AND POWERS

1.01 Purpose. The Corporation is incorporated for the purposes set forth in Article Five of its Articles of Incorporation, the same to be accomplished on behalf of the City of Bronte, Texas (the "City") as its duly constituted authority and instrumentality in accordance with the Development Corporation Act of 1979, as amended, Article 5190.6, Vernon's Ann. Civ. St., Sect. 4B (the "Act"), Local Government Code 505 Type B Corporations, and other applicable laws.

1.02 Powers. In the fulfillment of its corporate purpose, the Corporation shall be governed by Section 4B of the Act, and shall have all of the powers set forth and conferred in its Articles of Incorporation, in the Act, and in other applicable law, subject to the limitations prescribed therein and herein and to the provisions thereof and hereof.

ARTICLE TWO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.01 POWERS, NUMBER, AND TERM OF OFFICE.

- (a) The property and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by a Board of Directors (the "Board") and, subject to the restrictions imposed by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, and by these Bylaws, the Board shall exercise all of the powers of the Corporation. The Board shall be appointed by the governing body of the City of Bronte, Texas.
- (b) The board shall consist of seven (7) Directors, each of whom shall be: residents of the City; resident of the county in which the major part of the area of the municipality is located, or reside within ten (10) miles of the City boundaries and in a county bordering the county in which most of the municipality is located; and be appointed by the City Council (the "Council"). Each member of the Board shall serve at the pleasure by the Council for a term of four (4) years. Three Directors must be persons who are not employees, officers, or members of the City Council. Places, 1, 3, 5, and 7 shall be appointed in odd-numbered years, and Places 2, 4 and 6 shall be appointed in even-numbered years. Terms begin on October 1st of each year. In case of a vacancy on the Board, the Council shall appoint a successor to serve the remainder of the unexpired term. Board members shall continue to serve until resignation, removal, or their successor is appointed.
- (c) Any Director may be removed from office by the Council at will.
- (d) Any vacancy occurring on the Board shall be filled by the governing body of the City by an appointment of a successor Director for the remainder of the term of

the vacancy. Such an appointment must be made within forty-five (45) days after the vacancy is created.

2.02 MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS. The Directors may hold their meetings at such place or places in the City as the Board may from time to time determine, provided, however, in the absence of any such determination by the Board, the meetings shall be held at the Registered Office of the Corporation as specified in Article Four of these Bylaws.

- (a) Annual Meetings. The Annual Meetings of the Board shall be held on the first business day of February. Officers of the corporation shall be elected at each annual meeting. The President of the previous fiscal year shall call the annual meeting to order, shall preside over the election of a presiding officer of the newly formed Board, and shall then relinquish control of the meeting to the elected presiding officer. Any other business of the Board may be conducted at annual meetings.
- (b) Special Meetings. For any purpose the President or one or more of the Directors of the Corporation may call a Special meeting.
- (c) Emergency Meetings. An emergency or urgent public necessity exists only if immediate action is required due to an imminent threat to public health and safety or a reasonably unforeseeable situation.

2.03 NOTICE OF MEETINGS. The Secretary shall cause notice of the time and place of holding each meeting of the Board to be given to each Director. The notice may be in writing, in person, or in person by telephone. Notice of each meeting shall also be given to the public in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Government Code, as amended. Any member of the Board or member of the governing body of the City may place an item on the agenda of a Director's meeting by delivering the request in writing to the Secretary or in the absence of the Secretary to an officer of the Corporation designated by the Secretary no later than eighty (80) hours prior to the date of the Board meeting.

2.04 QUORUM. A majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of the official business of the Corporation.

2.05 ORDER OF BUSINESS. At the meetings of the Board, matters pertaining to the business of the Corporation shall be considered in accordance with rules of procedure as from time to time prescribed by the Board.

2.06 PRESIDING OFFICER. At all meetings of the Board, the President, or in the President's absence, the Vice-President, or in the absence of both of these officers, a member of the board selected by the directors present shall preside. The Secretary of the Corporation shall sit as Secretary at all meetings of the Board, and in case of the Secretary's absence, the presiding officer shall designate any person to act as Secretary.

2.07 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD. The Board may designate two or more Directors to constitute an office committee of the Board to exercise such authority of the Board as may be specified in the resolution. It is provided, however, that all final, official actions for the Corporation may be exercise only by the Board. Each committee so designated shall keep regular minutes of the transactions of its meetings and shall cause such minutes to be recorded in book kept for that purpose in the Registered Office of the Corporation.

ARTICLE THREE: OFFICERS

3.01 OFFICERS. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. The Board, at each annual meeting, shall elect these officers. The Board may appoint such other officers as it deems necessary, who shall have such authority, and shall perform such duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Board. One person may hold more than one office, except that the President shall not hold the office of Secretary. Terms of office shall be one (1) year with the right of an officer to be reelected. All officers shall be subject to removal from office at any time by a vote of the majority of the entire Board. A vacancy in the office of any officer shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the Board.

3.02 PRESIDENT. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation, and subject to the paramount authority of the Board, the President shall be in general charge of the properties and affairs of the Corporation, shall preside at all meetings of the Board, and may sign and execute all contracts, conveyances, franchises, bonds, deeds, assignments, mortgages, notes and other instruments in the name of the Corporation.

3.03 VICE-PRESIDENT. The Vice-President shall have such powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board and shall exercise the powers of the President during that officer's absence or inability to act. Any action taken by the Vice-President in the performance of the duties of the President shall be conclusive evidence of the absence or inability of the President to act at the time such actions were taken.

3.04 TREASURER. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility to see to the handling, custody, and security of all the funds and securities of the Corporation in accordance with these Bylaws. When necessary or proper, the Treasurer may endorse and sign, on behalf of the Corporation, for collection or issuance, checks, notes and other obligations in or drawn upon such bank or banks or depositories as shall be designated by the Board consistent with these Bylaws. The Treasurer shall see to the entry in the books of the Corporation full and accurate accounts of all monies received and paid out on account of the Corporation. The Treasurer shall, at the expense of the Corporation, give such bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such form and amount as the Board or the council may require.

3.05 SECRETARY. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board in books provided for that purpose; shall give and serve all notices; may sign with the President, or Vice-President, in the name of the Corporation, and/or attest the signature thereto, all contracts conveyances, franchises, bonds, deeds, assignments, mortgages, notes and other instruments of the Corporation, shall have charge of the corporate books, records, documents and instruments

except the papers as the Board may direct, all of which shall at all reasonable times be open to public inspection upon application at the office of the Corporation during business hours, and shall in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary subject to the control of the Board.

3.06 REGISTERED AGENT. The Board shall designate a registered agent who must be an individual who is a resident of Texas and who must have an office that is identical with the Registered Office of the Corporation. The initial registered agent of the Corporation shall be the City Secretary of the City of Bronte, Texas.

3.07 ASSISTANT SECRETARY / TREASURER. The Assistant Secretary / Treasurer, if any, shall, in general, perform such duties as may be assigned to them by the President, Secretary, Treasurer, Board of Directors, or by the governing body of the City.

3.08 CONTRACT WITH OTHER PRIVATE CORPORATION. The Corporation may contract with another private corporation to carry out an industrial development program or objective; or assist with the development or operation of an economic development program or objective consistent with the purposes and duties provided by this subtitle.

3.09 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS. Directors shall not receive any salary of compensation. However, they shall be reimbursed for their actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties hereunder.

3.10 TRAINING. President, Secretary, Treasurer, Registered Agent and Assistant Secretary/Treasurer shall attend Sales and Use Tax workshop annually. Newly appointed directors shall attend Sales and Use Tax workshop within twelve (12) months of being appointed. Directors shall continue to attend Sales and Use Tax workshop every two (2) years.

3.11 ATTENDANCE. Board members that miss three consecutive meetings are automatically removed from the Board.

ARTICLE FOUR: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

4.01 NOTICES AND WAIVERS. Whenever under the provisions of these bylaws notice is required to be given to any Director or officer, unless otherwise provided, the notice may be given personally, or it may be given in writing by depositing it in the post office or letter box in a post paid envelope or postal card addressed to the Director or officer, at the address as appears on the books of the Corporation, and the notice shall be deemed to be given by law, or by these bylaws, a waiver in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to the notice, whether before or after the time stated shall be deemed the equivalent of notice. This paragraph does not eliminate the requirement to comply with the Open Meetings Act.

4.02 REGISTERED OFFICE. The Registered Office of the Corporation shall be City Hall, 114 South Washington Street, Bronte, Texas 76933. The office must be open during the business

hours of the municipal offices of the City of Bronte, Texas. The books and records of the Corporation shall be stored in the Office.

4.03 FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the same as the fiscal year of the City.

4.04 RESIGNATIONS. Any Director or officer may at any time resign. Resignations shall be made in writing and shall take effect at the time specified in the resignation, or, if not time be specified, at the time of its receipt by the President or the Secretary. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective, unless expressly so provided in the resignation.

4.05 APPROVAL OF THE CITY COUNCIL. To the extent these bylaws refer to any approval or other action to be taken by the City, that approval or action shall be evidenced by a certified copy of a resolution, ordinance, or motion duly adopted by the City Council.

4.06 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART. The City Council at its sole discretion, and at any time, may alter or change the structure, organization or activities of the Corporation (including the termination of the Corporation), subject to any limitation on the impairment of contracts entered into such Corporation. The foregoing notwithstanding, the City, at all times during which any indebtedness of the Corporation, the interest on which is exempt from federal income taxation, remains outstanding, will maintain a beneficial interest in the Corporation.

4.07 STATE COMPTROLLER REPORT. Not later than February 1st of each year, the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall submit to the State Comptroller's Office a report in the form required by the Comptroller.

4.08 INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICER, AND EMPLOYEES.

- (a) As provided in the Act, the Corporation is, for the purposes of the Texas Tort Claims Act (Subchapter A, Chapter 101, Texas Civil Practices and Remedies Code), a governmental unit and its actions are governmental functions.
- (b) The Corporation shall indemnify each and every member of the board, its officers, and its employees, and each member of the Council and each employee of the City, to the fullest extent permitted by law, against any and all liability or expense, including attorneys fees, incurred by any of such persons by reason of any actions or omissions that may arise out of the functions and activities of the Corporation.

4.09 BUDGET. A budget for the forthcoming fiscal year shall be submitted to and approved by the Board and the governing body of the City of Bronte, Texas. The Board shall submit the budget in accordance with the annual budget preparation schedule as set forth by the City for its inclusion in the annual budget presentation to the City's governing body. The budget proposed for adoption shall include the projected operating expenses and such other budgetary information

as shall be useful to or appropriate for the Board of Directors and the governing body of the City of Bronte, Texas.

4.10 AUDIT. Financial reports shall be provided to the City of Bronte. Reports and shall be subject to inspection and audit by the City's external auditor. The external auditor shall provide an annual independent review to assure compliance with state law, policies and procedures.

ARTICLE FIVE: PROVISIONS REGARDING BYLAWS

5.01 EFFECTIVE DATE. These bylaws shall become effective only upon the occurrence of the following events:

- (1) the approval of these bylaws by the City Council; and
- (2) the adoption of these bylaws by the Board of Directors.

5.02 AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS. These bylaws may be amended at any time and from time to time either by majority vote of the Directors when in office with approval of the City Council or by the City Council itself, at its sole discretion.

5.03 INTERPRETATION OF BYLAWS. These bylaws shall be liberally construed to effectuate their purposes. If any word, phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or other part of these bylaws, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances, shall ever be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, the reminder of these bylaws and the application of such word, phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or party of these bylaws to any other person or circumstance shall not be affected thereby.

ARTICLE SIX: ELIGIBLE PROJECTS

- Manufacturing and industrial facilities.
- Research and development facilities.
- Military facilities.
- Recycling facilities.
- Distribution centers.
- Small warehouse and storage facilities.
- Primary job training facilities for use by institutions of higher education.
- Regional or national corporate headquarters facilities.
- Airport facilities.
- Facilities to promote new and expanded business development.
- Facilities to promote job creation and retention.
- Job training classes and career centers.
- Targeted infrastructure.
- Streets, roads, and area transportation facilities.
- Air or water pollution control facilities.

- Water supply facilities.
- Public safety facilities.
- Drainage and related improvements.
- Demolition of existing structures.
- General municipally owned improvements.
- Water conservation programs.
- Public parks, park facilities and events, open space improvements, museums, learning centers, and municipally owned buildings.
- Entertainment, tourist, and convention facilities, including auditoriums, amphitheaters, concert halls, and exhibition facilities.
- Affordable housing.
- Direct incentive for retail.
- Professional and amateur sport and athletic facilities including stadiums and ballparks. •
- Commercial facilities (stores, restaurants, concession, and parking facilities).
- May undertake projects outside of the city limits with permission of the governing body . that has jurisdiction over the property.

Amended and approved by city council on 18 day of April 2019.

Paul Ochman, Mayor

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME by Mayor, on behalf of the City of Bronte, on this <u>//</u> day of 2019.

TERESA KAY BALLARD MILL Notary Public, State of Texas Comm. Expires 06-06-2020 Notary ID 5496581

Notary Public, State of Texas

Director, 4B Bronte Economic Development

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME by <u>SUSAN Williams</u>, Director, on behalf of the said 4B Bronte Economic Development Board, on this <u>22</u> day of ugust. , 2019.



Notary Public, State of Texas

* *

15

And MARY Conceptions - New York Conception - Conception -

Source Contraction Data to Texas Contract Contract October 2020 Notice Discourse October 20 Notice Discourse October 20

Bronte Economic Development Corporation

P.O. Box 370 Bronte, Texas 76933

NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Bronte 4B Economic Development Corporation will be held Monday, July 22, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the City of Bronte Council Chambers at 114 South Washington Street, Bronte, Texas.

The Agenda is as follows: Call to order, roll call, and establish quorum Pledge of Allegiance Prayer Public Comment

Discuss/Act - Approval of Minutes May 22, 2019 May 28, 2019 June 11, 2019

Discuss/Act – Financial Report/AP

Old Business:

Discuss/Act – Update on status of website redesign

Discuss/Act – Update on status of location of pole installation for "Welcome Hunter" and Bronteoberfest" banners across state highways – Teresa Ballard/Gwen Dyess Discuss/Act – Update on status of Bronte's "entrance" signage on Highway 277 and 158 – Teresa Ballard

Discuss/Act -

Discuss/Act – Status update, Business Store Front Improvement Grant

Shear Heaven (Donna Hall) – Susan Williams

New Business:

Discuss/Act – Restoring Bronte Foundation – Consider approving funds Discuss/Act – Possible Budget Amendment for RBF

Discuss/Act – New, Business Store Front Improvement Grant (BSFI)

The Corner Grill (Brandy Kelly)

Discuss/Act – New Loan forgiveness Grant Application

Larry Dyess Automotive, LLC – Tire Shop

Discuss/Act – USDA Grant Account Funds Transfer

Discuss/Act - 2019-2020 Membership Renewal, TMCN

Discuss/Act – FY2020 Budget Discuss/Act - Update on Turkey Fest Discuss/Act - Establish EDC Social Media Site

Open Discussion Adjourn

The board members for the Bronte EDC reserve the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time concerning any matters listed above, whenever considered necessary by the Council and is legally justified under the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 551.

The above notice was posted on the 18 day of July 2019 at 5pm.

andra anoto

Original Signature file at City Hall Andra Arrott, EDC Clerk

Bronte Economic Development Corporation

P.O. Box 370 Bronte, Texas 76933

NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Bronte 4B Economic Development Corporation will be held Thursday, August 1, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the City of Bronte Council Chambers at 114 South Washington Street, Bronte, Texas.

The Agenda is as follows: Call to order, roll call, and establish quorum

Pledge of Allegiance

Prayer

Public Comment

New Business:

Discuss/Act – New, Business Store Front Improvement Grant (BSFI)

• Barker Properties, L.L.C. (Bralyn Barker)

Discuss/Act – New Loan forgiveness Grant Application

• Larry Dyess Automotive, LLC – Tire Shop

Discuss/Act – Approve FY2020 Budget

Open Discussion

Adjourn

The board members for the Bronte EDC reserve the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time concerning any matters listed above, whenever considered necessary by the Council and is legally justified under the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 551.

The above notice was posted on the 23 day of July 2019 at 4:45 pm.

Original Signature file at City Hall Teresa Ballard, EDC Coordinator

Bronte Economic Development Corporation P.O. Box 370 Bronte, Texas 76933

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Bronte 4B Economic Development Corporation will be held Tuesday, August 6, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in the City of Bronte Council Chambers at 114 South Washington Street, Bronte, Texas.

The Agenda is as follows:

- 1. Roll Call
- 2. Receive Public Comments Concerning Use of Funds from the Economic Development 4B Loan Forgiveness Grant Application for Larry Dyess Auto, LLC & Tires.

Adjourn

The board members for the Bronte EDC 4B reserve the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time concerning any matters listed above, whenever considered necessary by the Council and is legally justified under the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 551.

The above notice was posted on the 2nd day of August 2019 at Noon.

Jerso Ballard

Original Signature file at City Hall Teresa Ballard, EDC Coordinator